
Notice and Agenda of a Meeting of the 
Beaumont Basin Watermaster 

 

Wednesday, February 1, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. 
 

 

Meeting Location: 
 

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District 
560 Magnolia Avenue 

Beaumont, California 92223 
(951) 845-9581 

Watermaster Members: 
 

City of Banning 
City of Beaumont 

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District 
South Mesa Water Company 
Yucaipa Valley Water District 

 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
II. Roll Call 

City of Banning:  Arturo Vela (Alternate: Michael Rock) 
City of Beaumont:  ____________ (Alternate: Kyle Warsinski) 
Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District:  Eric Fraser (Alternate: Tony Lara) 
South Mesa Water Company:  George Jorritsma (Alternate: Dave Armstrong) 
Yucaipa Valley Water District:  Joseph Zoba (Alternate: Jennifer Ares) 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 
IV. Public Comments   At this time, members of the public may address the Beaumont Basin Watermaster 

on matters within its jurisdiction; however, no action or discussion may take place on any item not on the 
agenda.  To provide comments on specific agenda items, please complete a Request to Speak form and provide 
that form to the Secretary prior to the commencement of the meeting. 

V. Consent Calendar 
A. Meeting Minutes 

1. Meeting Minutes for December 7, 2016 
VI. Reports 

A. Report from Engineering Consultant - Hannibal Blandon, ALDA Engineering 
B. Report from Legal Counsel - Keith McCullough/Thierry Montoya, Alvarado Smith 

VII. Discussion Items 
A. Reorganization of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster Committee - Chairman, Vice-

Chairman, Secretary, and Treasurer [Memorandum No. 17-01, Page 11 of 82] 

Recommendation:  That the members of the Watermaster either reaffirm the 
existing officers or conduct nominations for the appointment of new officers of 
the Beaumont Basin Watermaster. 

B. Independent Accountant’s Financial Report of Agreed-Upon Procedures for the 
Beaumont Basin Watermaster [Memorandum No. 17-02, Page 12 of 82] 

Recommendation:  That the Watermaster Committee receives and files the 
Independent Accountant’s Financial Report for the period ending June 30, 
2015. 

  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 1 of 82



  

C. Review and Discussion of Conditions Related to the Groundwater Storage Agreement 
in the Beaumont Basin for the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (SGPWA) 
[Memorandum No. 17-03, Page 18 of 82] 

Recommendation:  That the Watermaster schedule a special meeting on 
Wednesday, March 1, 2017 to consider adopting Resolution No. 17-01. 

D. Review and Discussion of the Conceptual Framework for the Formation of a 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency for the San Timoteo Basin 8-2.08 [Memorandum 
No. 17-04, Page 22 of 82] 

Recommendation:  That the Watermaster Committee request to identified as 
a stakeholder within the San Timoteo Basin Memorandum of Agreement for 
the Sustainability Groundwater Management Act. 

E. Approval of a Contract Amendment for Engineering Services with ALDA Inc. 
[Memorandum No. 17-05, Page 33 of 82] 

Recommendation:  That the Watermaster Committee directs legal counsel to 
prepare a contract amendment extending the contract with ALDA Inc. through 
December 31, 2021. 

F. Discussion Regarding Task Order No. 12 with ALDA Inc. for the Preparation of the 
2016 Consolidated Annual Report, Estimate of the Basin Safe Yield, Update of the 
Groundwater Model, and Associated Consulting Services [Memorandum No. 17-06, 
Page 47 of 82] 

Recommendation:  That the Watermaster Committee approves Task Order No. 
12 for a sum not to exceed $95,970. 

G. Discussion Regarding Task Order No. 13 with ALDA Inc. for the Installation, 
Maintenance, and Data Collection of Water Level Monitoring Equipment in 2017 
[Memorandum No. 17-07, Page 53 of 82] 

Recommendation:  That the Watermaster Committee approves Task Order No. 
13 for a sum not to exceed $21,520. 

H. Discussion Regarding Task Order No. 14 with ALDA Inc. for the Analysis of Return 
Flows by Appropriators to the Beaumont Groundwater Basin and incorporation of 
findings into the 2016 Beaumont Basin Watermaster Annual Report [Memorandum 
No. 17-08, Page 57 of 82] 

Recommendation:  That the Watermaster Committee approves Task Order No. 
14 for a sum not to exceed $12,960. 

I. Presentation of Methodology for Estimating Groundwater Storage Losses Associated 
with Supplemental Water Recharge [Memorandum No. 17-09, Page 61 of 82] 

Recommendation:  That the Watermaster Committee provides direction and 
feedback to the ALDA/TH&Co team based on the presentation and discussion. 

J. Discussion Regarding the Methodology for Calculating New Yield [Memorandum No. 
17-10, Page 62 of 82] 

Recommendation:  No recommendation. 

K. Discussion Regarding the Water Level Monitoring Equipment [Memorandum No. 17-
11, Page 63 of 82] 

Recommendation:  That the Watermaster Committee continues to use the 
Solinst monitoring equipment. 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 2 of 82



  

VIII. Topics for Future Meetings 

A. Groundwater Storage Agreement in the Beaumont Basin for the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency 

B. Development of a methodology and policy to account for new yield from capturing 
local stormwater in the basin. 

C. Development of a methodology and policy to account for groundwater storage losses 
in the basin resulting from the spreading of additional water sources.  

D. Development of a methodology and policy to account for recycled water recharge. 

E. Develop a protocol to increase the accuracy and consistency of data reported to the 
Watermaster. 

F. Develop a policy to account for transfers of water that may result when an 
Appropriator provides water service to an Overlying Party.  

IX. Comments from the Watermaster Committee Members 

X. Announcements 

A. The next regular meeting of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster is scheduled for 
Wednesday, April 5, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. 

XI. Adjournment 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 3 of 82



Consent Calendar 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 4 of 82



Record of the Minutes of the  
Beaumont Basin Committee Meeting of the 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster 
Wednesday, December 7, 2016  

 
Meeting Location: 

 
Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District 
560 Magnolia Avenue 
Beaumont, CA  92223 

 
I. Call to Order 

 
Chairman Arturo Vela called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m. 

 
II. Roll Call 

 
City of Banning     Arturo Vela    Present 
City of Beaumont     Kyle Warsinski  Present 
Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District  Eric Fraser    Present 
South Mesa Water Company   George Jorritsma  Present 
Yucaipa Valley Water District   Joseph Zoba   Present 
 
Kyle Warsinski was present as the alternate representing the City of Beaumont in the 
absence of Member Dave Dillon. Thierry Montoya was present representing legal counsel 
for the Beaumont Basin Watermaster. 
 
Members of the public who registered their attendance were: John Covington and Hannibal 
Blandon. 
 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Chairman Vela led the pledge of allegiance. 
 

IV. Public Comments    
 
No public comment was received at this time. 
 

V. Consent Calendar 
 
A. Meeting Minutes 

 
1. Meeting Minutes for October 5, 2016 

 
Member Joseph Zoba motioned to approve the consent calendar. The motion 
was seconded by Member George Jorritsma and passed 5-0. 

  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 5 of 82



  

VI. Reports 
 
A. Report from Engineering Consultant - Hannibal Blandon, ALDA Engineering 

 
Engineer Hannibal Blandon stated that the 2015 Annual Report had been finalized 
and 2 copies were provided to each member agency. He also reported that proposals 
for the development of methodologies and policies to account for new yield from 
capturing local storm water in the basin as well as for groundwater storage losses 
had not been finalized yet but would be by the next meeting. 

 
B. Report from Legal Counsel - Thierry Montoya, Alvarado Smith 

 
Legal Counsel Thierry Montoya reported on the discussions he had been involved in 
with legal counsel for the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (SGPWA) related to its 
application for a groundwater storage account. He also outlined a recommended 
framework for how to make adjustments to future storage accounts, to address 
concerns about impacts to water quality from recycled water recharge, as well as the 
potential limitation of drilling and constructing new wells by allowing recycled water 
recharge. Legal Counsel Montoya stated he would provide a memo to the members 
of the Watermaster Committee, and once a framework is settled upon, a Resolution 
could be voted on by the Committee as soon as the next meeting. 
 

VII. Discussion Items 
 

A. Status Report on Water Level Monitoring throughout the Beaumont Basin through 
November 29, 2016 [Memorandum No. 16-19, Page 11 of _] 

 
Recommendation:  No recommendation 
 
Engineer Blandon reported on trouble encountered with instrumentation that 
logs well water levels and steps that had been taken to remedy the situation, 
including sending the equipment still under warranty back to the manufacturer, 
as well as logging well water levels by hand. Member Eric Fraser suggested 
looking at different vendors for monitoring equipment as a result of the lack of 
technical support from the vendors of the defective equipment. Member Zoba 
directed Engineer Blandon to work with Jennifer from Yucaipa Valley Water 
District to look at other solutions for monitoring equipment issues.  

 
B. Discussion Regarding the Creation of a Return Flow Policy for Beaumont Basin 

[Memorandum No. 16-20, Page 14 of _] 
 

Recommendation:  No recommendation 
 
Member Fraser provided an overview of how return flows could be now be 
identified and tied back to specific areas to which those return flows occur. He 
suggested working with legal counsel to implement a final rule or ordinance 
that identifies how those return flows would be credited, utilizing the data from 
the Safe Yield Study.  
 

  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 6 of 82



  

After further discussion among the Committee Members, Member Fraser made 
a motion to direct staff to develop a return flow policy in which the individual 
retail agencies are credited appropriately for the return flows that occur within 
their service area as a result of their activities, and that such a policy be 
brought back to this governing body at the next meeting for consideration. The 
motion was seconded by Member Zoba and passed 5-0.    
 

C. Conditions Related to the Groundwater Storage Agreement in the Beaumont Basin 
for the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency [Memorandum No. 16-21, Page _ of _] 

 
Recommendation:  Pending 
 
Member Zoba stated that except for what was discussed by Legal Counsel 
Montoya earlier in the meeting, the Committee is ready to move forward 
related to the SGPWA Groundwater Storage Agreement subject to the five 
conditions and that an update would be provided at the next meeting.  
 
SGPWA General Manager Jeff Davis addressed the Committee and made a 
commitment to having something for Committee consideration at the February 
meeting. 
 

VIII. Topics for Future Meetings 
 

A. Groundwater Storage Agreement in the Beaumont Basin for the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency 
 

B. Development of a methodology and policy to account for new yield from capturing 
local storm water in the basin 
 

C. Development of a methodology and policy to account for groundwater storage losses 
in the basin resulting from the spreading of additional water sources 

 
D. Development of a methodology and policy to account for recycled water recharge 
 
E. Develop a protocol to increase the accuracy and consistency of data reported to the 

Watermaster 
 
F. Develop a policy to account for transfers of water that may result when an 

Appropriator provides water service to an Overlying Party 
 
G. Develop a policy to account for transfers of water that may result when an 

Appropriator provides water service to an Overlying Party 
 

IX. Comments from the Watermaster Committee Members 
 

There were no comments from the Watermaster Committee Members. 
 

X. Announcements 
 

A. The next regular meeting of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster is scheduled for 
Wednesday, February 1, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. 
 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 7 of 82



  

XI. Adjournment 
 
Chairman Vela adjourned the meeting at 10:36 a.m. 

  
Attest: 

 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Eric Fraser, Secretary 
Beaumont Basin Watermaster 
 
 
 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 8 of 82



Reports 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 9 of 82



Discussion Items 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 10 of 82



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 17-01 

 
Date: February 1, 2017 
 
From: Joseph Zoba, Treasurer 
 
Subject: Reorganization of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster Committee - 

Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Secretary, and Treasurer 
 
Recommendation: That the members of the Watermaster either reaffirm the existing 

officers or conduct nominations for the appointment of new officers 
of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster. 

 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide the Watermaster Committee members with 
the opportunity to reaffirm the existing officers or solicit nominations for the appointment 
of new officers for the organization. 
 
The current officers are: 

Chairman - Art Vela 
Vice Chairman - George Jorritsma 

Secretary - Eric Fraser 
Treasurer - Joseph Zoba 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 11 of 82



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 17-02 

 
Date: February 1, 2017 
 
From: Joseph Zoba, Treasurer 
 
Subject: Independent Accountant’s Financial Report of Agreed-Upon 

Procedures for the Beaumont Basin Watermaster 
 
Recommendation: That the Watermaster Committee receives and files the 

Independent Accountant’s Financial Report for the period ending 
June 30, 2016. 

 
 
The Beaumont Basin Watermaster engaged the firm of Rogers, Anderson, Malody & 
Scott to perform an independent financial review of the Watermaster activities for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016.  The independent financial review was conducted under 
the same terms and scope as the prior fiscal year. 
 
At the beginning of the 2015-2016 fiscal year, the Beaumont Basin Watermaster had 
unrestricted net assets in the amount of $61,310.  During the fiscal year, the Watermaster 
collected $217,692 in revenues and expended $100,908.  As of June 30, 2016, the 
Watermaster had unrestricted net assets in the amount of $178,094.   
 
The following illustration provides a summary of the annual revenues and expenses of 
the Beaumont Basin Watermaster since its formation in 2004. 
 

 

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$400,000

FY
 2

00
4

FY
 2

00
5

FY
 2

00
6

FY
 2

00
7

FY
 2

00
8

FY
 2

00
9

FY
 2

01
0

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
2

FY
 2

01
3

FY
 2

01
4

FY
 2

01
5

FY
 2

01
6

Annual Revenue
Annual Expense

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 12 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-02 Page 2 of 6 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 13 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-02 Page 3 of 6 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 14 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-02 Page 4 of 6 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 15 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-02 Page 5 of 6 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 16 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-02 Page 6 of 6 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 17 of 82



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 17-03 

 
Date: February 1, 2017 
 
From: Hannibal Blandon, ALDA Inc. 
 Joseph Zoba, Treasurer 
 
Subject: Review and Discussion of Conditions Related to the Groundwater 

Storage Agreement in the Beaumont Basin for the San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency (SGPWA)  

 
Recommendation: That the Watermaster schedule a special meeting on Wednesday, 

March 1, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. to consider adopting Resolution No. 
17-01. 

 
 
At the April 2016 Watermaster meeting, copies of SGPWA’s application for a groundwater 
storage agreement in the Beaumont Basin were distributed to members of the 
Watermaster Committee for their review.   

At the Watermaster meeting on June 1, 2016, the Watermaster Committee discussed the 
importance of incorporating contingencies into the approval of the storage account to 
protect the rights and responsibilities of the Watermaster members to fulfill the terms of 
the Stipulated Judgment.  

On October 5, 2016, the Watermaster Committee reviewed the following proposed 
conditions that would be included in the storage agreement with the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency to represent the common goals of the parties: 

1. The storage account authorized to the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency shall not 
negatively impact, impede, reduce or obstruct the purchase and delivery of 
supplemental water from the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency to any water 
retailer of the Watermaster Committee at any location or time.   
 

2. When the quantity of supplemental water available on an annual basis exceeds all 
demands and/or requests for supplemental water by the Watermaster Committee 
members, the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency may recharge the excess 
supplemental water in the Beaumont Avenue Recharge Facility or any other 
location approved by the Beaumont Basin Watermaster. 
 

3. Supplemental water stored by the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency pursuant to 
the conditions herein and the approved Storage Agreement will be made available 
at any time to the members of the Watermaster without restrictions 
 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 18 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-03 Page 2 of 4 

4. Any member or members of the Watermaster shall maintain the first right of refusal 
to purchase the supplemental water placed in storage by the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency.  All Watermaster members shall be notified in writing a minimum 
of 60 calendar days prior to any sale, transfer, distribution, or exchange of any 
supplemental water in the storage account of the San Gorgonio Pass Water 
Agency.  The Watermaster maintains an opportunity to individually or collectively 
purchase the water in the storage account of the San Gorgonio Pass Water 
Agency under the same terms and conditions offered to a member of the 
Watermaster, non-member of the Watermaster, or any other entity.  
 

5. Any future condition, issue, or operational constraint that conflicts with the ability 
of any Watermaster member to administer and fulfill their obligation(s) pursuant to 
the Stipulated Judgment shall be immediate cause for rescinding the storage 
agreement to the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency. 

The language was shared with Jeff Davis, General Manager of the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency and presented again for review and discussion at the December 7, 2016 
Watermaster meeting.   

In preparation for this meeting, a draft resolution has been prepared with a proposed 
modification to condition number five above. 

The San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency has requested additional time to review the 
conditions outlined above and modified in the attached resolution.  

If there are no further issues or suggestions related to this language, then the final 
Groundwater Storage Resolution should be scheduled for consideration at a special 
meeting on the first Wednesday in March. 

  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 19 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-03 Page 3 of 4 

RESOLUTION NO. 17-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER TO CONFIRM AND ADOPT 
SAN GORGONIO PASS WATER AGENCY’S (“SGPWA”) APPLICATION FOR 

GROUNDWATER STORAGE AGREEMENT, SUBJECT TO STATED CONDITIONS  
 
 WHEREAS, the Stipulated Judgment establishing the Beaumont Basin Watermaster 
(Riverside Superior Court Case No. 389197) empowers the Beaumont Basin Watermaster to 
adopt appropriate rules and regulations for the conduct of Watermaster affairs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to its authority, the Beaumont Basin Watermaster established 
principles of groundwater storage in the Beaumont Basin via Resolution No. 2005-01, the 
foundation for SGPWA’s Application for Groundwater Storage Agreement; 
 
 WHEREAS, SGPWA is a state water contractor formed in 1961 for the purpose of 
importing water from the State Water Project into the San Gorgonio Pass area.  SGPWA’s service 
area includes the Beaumont Basin; 
  
 WHEREAS, SGPWA submitted to the Beaumont Basin Watermaster a Groundwater 
Storage Application requesting, in pertinent part, to store up to 10,000 acre-feet of water in the 
Beaumont Basin through artificial recharge of water from the State Water Project, via a proposed 
recharge facilities to be located in the southwest corner of Brookside Avenue and Beaumont 
Avenue; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Beaumont Basin Watermaster issued copies of SGPWA’s Groundwater 
Storage Application to members of its Watermaster Committee for review in advance of the 
October 5, 2016, Beaumont Basin Watermaster meeting; and,  
  
 WHEREAS, on October 5, 2016 and December 7, 2016, the Beaumont Basin 
Watermaster met to discuss SGPWA’s Groundwater Storage Application agreeing to support 
such under the following draft conditions that: 
 

1. SGPWA’s Groundwater Storage Account shall not negatively impact, impede, reduce 
or obstruct the purchase and delivery of supplemental imported water from SGPWA 
to any water retailer of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster Committee, at any location 
or time; 

2. when the quantity of supplemental imported water available on an annual basis 
exceeds the demands and/or requests for supplemental water by the Watermaster 
Committee members, SGPWA may recharge the excess supplemental imported 
water in the Beaumont Avenue Recharge Facility, or any other location approved by 
the Beaumont Basin Watermaster; 

3. supplemental imported water stored by the SGPWA pursuant to the conditions 
herein and the approved SGPWA Groundwater Storage Application, will be made 
available, at any time, to the members of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster without 
restrictions; 

4. any member of members of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster shall maintain the 
right of first refusal to purchase the supplemental imported water placed in storage 
by the SGPWA on a pro rata purchase sharing basis.   All Beaumont Basin 
Watermaster members shall be notified in writing a minimum of sixty-(60) calendar 
days prior to any sale, transfer, distribution, or exchange of any supplemental 
imported water in the storage account of the SGPWA.  The Beaumont Basin 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 20 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-03 Page 4 of 4 

Watermaster maintains an opportunity to individually or collectively purchase the 
water in the storage account of the SGPWA under the same terms and conditions 
offered to a member of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster, non-member of the 
Beaumont Basin Watermaster, or any other entity; and, 

5. any future condition, issue, or operational constraint that conflicts with the ability of 
any Beaumont Basin Watermaster member to administer and fulfill its obligation(s) 
pursuant to the Stipulated Judgment establishing the Beaumont Basin Watermaster 
(Riverside Superior Court Case No. 389197), shall be immediate cause for 
suspending the rescinding SGPWA’s Groundwater Storage account by a majority 
action of the Beaumont Basin Watermaster Committee.   
     

 
 WHEREAS, the Beaumont Basin Watermaster met on February 1, 2017 to take this matter 
up, finding that the foregoing is true and accurate, and  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
that it does hereby accept SGPWA’s Groundwater Storage Application and  does hereby grant 
SGPWA a water storage account pursuant to SGPWA’s Groundwater Storage Application, 
subject to the conditions set forth in this Resolution, and subject to the Judgment establishing the 
Beaumont Basin Watermaster (Riverside Superior Court Case No. 389197), its rules and 
regulations for the Beaumont Basin – to include groundwater storage in the Beaumont Basin by 
Non-Appropriators – a classification applying to SGPWA.   

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of February, 2017. 
 

BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
 Art Vella, Chairman of the  
 Beaumont Basin Watermaster 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 21 of 82



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 17-04 

 
Date: February 1, 2017 
 
From: Joseph Zoba, Treasurer 
 
Subject: Review and Discussion of the Conceptual Framework for the 

Formation of a Groundwater Sustainability Agency for the San 
Timoteo Basin 8-2.08 

 
Recommendation: That the Watermaster Committee request to identified as a 

stakeholder within the San Timoteo Basin Memorandum of 
Agreement for the Sustainability Groundwater Management Act. 

 
 
The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) established a new structure for 
managing California’s groundwater resources at a local level by local agencies.  SGMA 
requires the formation of locally-controlled groundwater sustainability agencies (GSAs) in 
the State’s high- and medium-priority groundwater basins and subbasins (basins).  A GSA 
is responsible for developing and implementing a groundwater sustainability plan to meet 
the sustainability goal of the basin to ensure that it is operated within its sustainable yield, 
without causing undesirable results.   
 
Since the Beaumont Basin is 
adjudicated, the management 
of the Beaumont subbasin 
significantly contributes to the 
overall sustainability of the San 
Timoteo Basin..  However, the 
remaining portion of the San 
Timoteo Basin (8-2.08) resides 
within the boundary of the 
Beaumont Cherry Valley Water 
District, the Yucaipa Valley 
Water District, Eastern 
Municipal Water District, the 
City of Redlands, and the San 
Gorgonio Pass Water Agency. 
 
The purpose of this agenda 
item is to discuss the concept regarding the formation of a groundwater sustainablity 
agency to manage the groundwater supplies beyond the boundary of the Beaumont Basin 
Watermater in the remaining portion of the San Timoteo Basin. 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 22 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-04 Page 2 of 11 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 23 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-04 Page 3 of 11 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 24 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-04 Page 4 of 11 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 25 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-04 Page 5 of 11 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 26 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-04 Page 6 of 11 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 27 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-04 Page 7 of 11 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 28 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-04 Page 8 of 11 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 29 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-04 Page 9 of 11 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 30 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-04 Page 10 of 11 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 31 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-04 Page 11 of 11 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 32 of 82



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 17-05 

 
Date: February 1, 2017 
 
From: Joseph Zoba, Treasurer 
 
Subject: Approval of a Contract Amendment for Engineering Services with 

ALDA Inc. 
 
Recommendation: That the Watermaster Committee directs legal counsel to prepare 

a contract amendment extending the contract with ALDA Inc. 
through December 31, 2021. 

 
 
The initial contract between the Beaumont Basin Watermaster and ALDA Inc. was signed 
on May 10th, 2012.  The contract (attached) was for a four-year period ending on June 
30th, 2016. 
 
It is recommended that the existing contract be amended to extend the consulting 
services provided by ALDA Inc. for a five-year period ending on December 31st, 2021 with 
updated billing rates to be maintained for the duration of the contract amendment. 
 
 
 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 33 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-05 Page 2 of 14 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 34 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-05 Page 3 of 14 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 35 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-05 Page 4 of 14 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 36 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-05 Page 5 of 14 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 37 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-05 Page 6 of 14 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 38 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-05 Page 7 of 14 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 39 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-05 Page 8 of 14 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 40 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-05 Page 9 of 14 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 41 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-05 Page 10 of 14 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 42 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-05 Page 11 of 14 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 43 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-05 Page 12 of 14 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 44 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-05 Page 13 of 14 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 45 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-05 Page 14 of 14 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 46 of 82



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 17-06 

 
Date: February 1, 2017 
 
From: Joseph Zoba, Treasurer 
 
Subject: Discussion Regarding Task Order No. 12 with ALDA Inc. for the 

Preparation of the 2016 Consolidated Annual Report, Estimate of 
the Basin Safe Yield, Update of the Groundwater Model, and 
Associated Consulting Services 

 
Recommendation: That the Watermaster Committee approves Task Order No. 12 for 

a sum not to exceed $95,970. 
 
 
A new task order is necessary to authorize ALDA Inc. to provide technical support 
services to the Watermaster Committee during Calendar Year 2017. 
 
The proposed scope of services for Task Order No. 12, consistent with previously years, 
provides for the preparation of the 2016 Consolidated Annual Report, estimate of the 
2016 Safe Yield of the Beaumont Basin, and Associated Consulting Services in support 
to Watermaster activities.  In addition, this task order incorporates the annual update of 
the groundwater model to 2016 hydrologic conditions.  The estimated cost of completion 
is based on the newly amended rates for the 2017-21 calendar years.  Hourly rates will 
remain constant during this five-year period. 
 
The financial impacts associated with the proposed contract would result in a budget line 
item of approximately $96,000, and if approved would result in an invoice sent to each 
Watermaster Committee member in the amount of $19,194. 
 
 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 47 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-06 Page 2 of 6 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 48 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-06 Page 3 of 6 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 49 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-06 Page 4 of 6 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 50 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-06 Page 5 of 6 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 51 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-06 Page 6 of 6 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 52 of 82



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 17-07 

 
Date: February 1, 2017 
 
From: Joseph Zoba, Treasurer 
 
Subject: Discussion Regarding Task Order No. 13 with ALDA Inc. for the 

Installation, Maintenance, and Data Collection of Water Level 
Monitoring Equipment in 2017 

 
Recommendation: That the Watermaster Committee approves Task Order No. 13 for 

a sum not to exceed $21,520. 
 
 
A new task order is necessary to authorize ALDA Inc. to provide water level monitoring 
services in 2017. 
 
The proposed scope of services for Task Order No. 13, provides for the identification of 
new monitoring sites and installation of related equipment and the operation, 
maintenance, and data collection at existing sites during calendar year 2017.  It is 
anticipated that a total of 18 monitoring sites will be operational in the Beaumont Basin 
during Calendar Year 2017. 
 
The financial impacts associated with the proposed contract would result in a budget line 
item of $21,520.00, and if approved would result in an invoice sent to each Watermaster 
Committee member in the amount of $4,304. 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 53 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-07 Page 2 of 4 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 54 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-07 Page 3 of 4 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 55 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-07 Page 4 of 4 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 56 of 82



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 17-08 

 
Date: February 1, 2017 
 
From: Joseph Zoba, Treasurer 
 
Subject: Discussion Regarding Task Order No. 14 with ALDA Inc. for the 

Analysis of Return Flows by Appropriators to the Beaumont 
Groundwater Basin and incorporation of findings into the 2016 
Beaumont Basin Watermaster Annual Report 

 
Recommendation: That the Watermaster Committee approves Task Order No. 14 for 

a sum not to exceed $12,960. 
 
 
In consideration of the fact that irrigation return flows contribute to the Safe Yield of the 
Beaumont Basin, the Beaumont Basin Watermaster Board directed ALDA Inc. to 
incorporate return flow estimates, by Appropriator, into the report of the 2013 
Reevaluation of the Safe Yield.  The 2013 return flow estimate was based on water 
delivery records within each Appropriator’s respective service areas within the Beaumont 
Basin Adjudication boundary. 
 
To date, annual return flow estimates, by Appropriator, have not been incorporated into 
the Beaumont Basin Watermaster annual reports.  ALDA Inc., in Association with Thomas 
Harder and Company has prepared a proposed scope of work and cost estimate to 
compile water delivery records and estimate return flow, by Appropriator, within the 
Beaumont Basin Adjudication area.  The Appropriator service areas to be evaluated will 
include the Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District, the City of Banning, and the Yucaipa 
Valley Water District.  The return flow estimates would be incorporated into the 2016 
annual report. 
 
The financial impacts associated with the proposed contract would result in a budget line 
item of $12,960, and if approved would result in an invoice sent to each Watermaster 
Committee member in the amount of $2,592. 
 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 57 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-08 Page 2 of 4 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 58 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-08 Page 3 of 4 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 59 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-08 Page 4 of 4 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 60 of 82



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 17-09 

 
Date: February 1, 2017 
 
From: Thomas Harder, Thomas Harder and Company 
 
Subject: Presentation of Methodology for Estimating Groundwater Storage 

Losses Associated with Supplemental Water Recharge 
 
Recommendation: That the Watermaster Committee provides direction and feedback 

to the ALDA/TH&Co team based on the presentation and 
discussion. 

 
 
One of the findings from the 2013 Reevaluation of the Beaumont Basin Safe Yield was 
that there are groundwater underflow losses out of the basin and that the amount of loss 
is sensitive to pumping and recharge from both within and outside the Beaumont Basin.  
Furthermore, as the San Gorgonio Pass area is a groundwater flow divide, underflow 
losses appear to occur in multiple locations along the southern portion of the basin.  The 
calibrated groundwater flow model developed for the Safe Yield reevaluation was used 
to estimate the amount and location of losses in the basin, based on existing data. 
 
The 2015 Beaumont Basin Watermaster annual report recommended that the 
Watermaster Committee consider developing a methodology to account for groundwater 
storage losses from the Beaumont Basin.   
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to review a presentation of our current understanding 
of groundwater losses out of the basin, the impacts of supplemental water recharge on 
losses, and considerations for developing a methodology to account for losses associated 
with storage of water in the basin. 
 
 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 61 of 82



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 17-10 

 
Date: February 1, 2017 
 
From: Thomas Harder, Thomas Harder and Company 
 
Subject: Discussion Regarding the Methodology for Calculating New Yield 
 
Recommendation: No recommendation. 
 
 
Past Beaumont Basin Watermaster annual reports have recommended that the 
Watermaster Board consider developing a methodology for determining New Yield in the 
Beaumont Basin.  New Yield is defined in the Judgment as: 
 

“Increases in yield in quantities greater than historical 
amounts from sources of supply including, but not limited to, 
capture of available storm flow, by means of projects 
constructed after February 20, 2003, as determined by the 
Watermaster.” 

 
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide a presentation of the concept of New Yield 
as it relates to the Beaumont Basin and the challenges involved with quantifying New 
Yield in this basin, given its unique hydrology.  Based on the recent hydrological work to 
reevaluate the Safe Yield of the Basin, it is concluded that the available surface water 
monitoring network is not adequate to develop definitive New Yield estimates.   
 
The purpose of the presentation is to facilitate a discussion of New Yield as it relates to 
Watermaster goals and strategic planning. 
 
 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 62 of 82



BEAUMONT BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEMORANDUM NO. 17-11 

 
Date: February 1, 2017 
 
From: Hannibal Blandon, ALDA Inc 
 
Subject: Discussion Regarding the Water Level Monitoring Equipment 
 
Recommendation: That the Watermaster Committee continues to use the Solinst 

monitoring equipment. 
 
 
Over the last few months several concerns have been raised during the Watermaster 
meetings about the poor customer service received from Solinst, the manufacturer of the 
monitoring equipment currently in use.  The Watermaster Committee requested that we 
look at other manufacturers to evaluate the possibility of installing new equipment.  
 
It should be noted that we have brought the customer services issues to upper 
management at Solinst and they have been resolved.  Equipment at present is working 
as intended. 
 
Over the last few weeks we contacted two additional manufacturers that use depth probes 
and one that uses sonic waves to record water levels.  One of the manufacturers 
contacted was In-Situ; this company and Solinst are the two brands most commonly used 
in similar groundwater monitoring programs.  The attached table compares Solinst 
product against these companies.  Attached to this memorandum are included the bids 
submitted by these manufacturers along with pertinent equipment information. 
 
Given that a) the customer service issues have been addressed with Solinst, b) the 
equipment is working as intended, and c) new equipment will have to be acquired, we 
recommend to continue using the existing equipment. 
 
 
  

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 63 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 2 of 20 

Water Level Monitoring Equipment – Comparison Matrix 
  Solinst In-Situ Feron ENO 

Scientific 
Will their product work with 
existing equipment 

YES NO NO NO 

Initial cost $18,000 A.- $19,790(1) 
B.- $30,385 

$13,573 $14,770 

Cost of Probe / Unit $597.00 A.- $595.00 
B.- $795.00 

$299.00 $1,055.70 

Cost of communication 
cable per foot 

$1.00 A.- $2.10 
B.- $3.50 

$1,00 N/A 

Local power requirement NO NO NO YES (2) 
Battery life 10 yrs 10 yrs 10 yrs N/A 
Technical support 8 AM to 5 PM 

Eastern Time 
24 Hours / 
7 Days a 

Week 

8 AM to 5 PM 
Eastern Time 

8 AM to 5 
PM 

Eastern Time 
Reliability of equipment Reliable Reliable Reliable Problems 

when using 
Site Ports 

and 
Cascading 

water(3) 
Subject to vandalism Low Low Low High(4) 
Customer service The best before you buy 

(1) Bid A uses a communication cable that does not allow probe to adjust for barometric pressure. Bid 
B uses a communication cable that allows probe to adjust. 

(2) Equipment requires a small solar panel to provide energy to equipment. 
(3) May not be as accurate when side ports are used or when cascading water is present. 
(4) Solar panels and above ground equipment could be subject to vandalism. 

 
 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 64 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 3 of 20 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 65 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 4 of 20 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 66 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 5 of 20 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 67 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 6 of 20 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 68 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 7 of 20 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 69 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 8 of 20 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 70 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 9 of 20 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 71 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 10 of 20 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 72 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 11 of 20 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 73 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 12 of 20 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 74 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 13 of 20 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 75 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 14 of 20 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 76 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 15 of 20 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 77 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 16 of 20 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 78 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 17 of 20 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 79 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 18 of 20 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 80 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 19 of 20 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 81 of 82



Beaumont Basin Watermaster Memorandum No. 17-11 Page 20 of 20 

 

Beaumont Basin Watermaster - February 1, 2017 - Page 82 of 82


	Notice and Agenda of a Meeting of the
	Beaumont Basin Watermaster
	Meeting Location:
	Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District
	560 Magnolia Avenue
	Beaumont, California 92223

	_170201 Watermaster Agenda.pdf
	Notice and Agenda of a Meeting of the
	Beaumont Basin Watermaster
	Meeting Location:
	Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District
	560 Magnolia Avenue
	Beaumont, California 92223





